
 

Select Commission Briefing - 9.30 a.m. 
 
 

SELF REGULATION SELECT COMMISSION 
 
 
Venue: Town Hall, Moorgate 

Street, Rotherham. 
Date: Thursday, 8th May, 2014 

  Time: 10.00 a.m. 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
1. Apologies for Absence.  
  

 
2. To determine if the following matters are to be considered under the categories 

suggested in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972.  
  

 
3. To determine any item which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 

considered as a matter of urgency.  
  

 
4. Declarations of Interest.  
  

 
5. Questions from Members of the Public and the Press.  
  

 
6. Communications.  
  

 
For Decision:- 
 
7. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 27th March, 2014 (herewith) (Pages 1 

- 4) 
  

 
For Monitoring:- 
 
8. Revenue Budget Monitoring for the period ending 28th February, 2014 (report 

herewith) (Pages 5 - 22) 
  

 
9. Corporate Risk Register (report herewith) (Pages 23 - 33) 
  

 
10. Work Programme 2013/14 - Update and Forward Planning (report herewith) 

(Pages 34 - 37) 
  

 



 
11. Date and Time of Next Meeting - Thursday, 26th June, 2014 at 3.30 p.m.  
  

 
 
 
 

Members of the Self-Regulation Select Commission:- 
Councillor Currie (Chairman) 

Councillor Beck (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillors Ahmed, Atkin, Beaumont, Ellis, Godfrey, J. Hamilton, Mannion, Sharman, Tweed, 

Vines and Watson. 
 

 



SELF REGULATION SELECT COMMISSION - 27/03/14 23B 

 

SELF REGULATION SELECT COMMISSION 

27th March, 2014 

 
 
Present:- Councillor Currie (in the Chair); Councillors Atkin, Beaumont, Beck, Ellis, 
Godfrey, Sharman and Watson. 
 

Apologies for absence:- Apologies were received from Councillors J. Hamilton, 
Tweed and Vines.  
 
60. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

 There were no Declarations of Interest to report. 
 

61. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND THE PRESS  

 

 There were no questions from members of the public or the press. 
 

62. COMMUNICATIONS  

 

 No items of communication had been received, but the Senior Adviser 
(Member Development and Scrutiny) advised the Select Commission that 
a member development session on Chairing Skills was taking place on 
Friday, 28th March, 2014 and some places were still available. 
 

63. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  

 

 Resolved:-  That the minutes of the meeting held on 20th February, 2013 
be approved as a correct record for signature by the Chairman. 
 
Reference was made to Minute No. 58 (Revenue Budget Monitoring) and 
the questions about Looked After Children which were raised at the 
meeting of the Improving Lives Select Commission and which the 
Chairperson felt were adequately covered. 
 

64. AGENCY WORKER USAGE  

 

 Consideration was given to a report presented by Phil Howe, Director of 
Human Resources, accompanied by Warren Carratt and Mori McDermott 
from Children and Young People’s Services and Adrian Gabriel from 
Environment and Development Services, which provided an overview of 
agency worker activity across the Council including rationale for use. 
 
It was noted that the Council had a master vendor contract for the supply 
of temporary agency workers in place since 2007 and it was important 
that usage of such workers should be managed in a cost effective and 
business efficient way. In order to ensure this happens an overarching 
policy document, plus a range of guidance documents were in place to 
inform managers of the processes and procedures which should be 
followed to achieve this efficiency.  

Agenda Item 7Page 1



24B  SELF REGULATION SELECT COMMISSION - 27/03/14  

 

 
If used correctly the additional costs for agency workers in higher hourly 
rates and agency commission could largely be offset by not incurring 
other ‘On-costs’ associated with National Insurance and Pension 
contributions or costs nor eventual  redundancy payments or employment 
litigation costs associated with employment being brought to an end. 
 

Senior management in each Directorate were supplied, on a monthly 
basis, with a range of data regarding their agency usage. Detailed 
workforce data was also supplied on an annual basis to assist with 
workforce planning.  
 

Over the last three year period the overall spend on agency workers had 
dropped significantly although there was a slight upward trend showing in 
this current year (2013/14). 
  

A short summary of Directorate activity was provided and reference made 
to the information contained within the appendices, which were included 
with the report as submitted. 
 
Discussion ensued and the following issues were raised and 
subsequently clarified:- 
 

• Current spend in Children and Young People’s Services to cover 
vacant posts, sickness/absence and maternity leave and whether 
this was not in accordance with  the current policy. 

• Detailed update of agency worker usage in Directorates was 
received and the accumulation of continuous service was questioned 
on specific examples, e.g. the Admin. Assistant in Environment and 
Development Services and whether this was more widespread 
elsewhere when Agency workers may be retained beyond the 12 
weeks outlined in the policy.  

• Allocation of appropriate resources and the risks to the Council 
should it not be able to cover vital posts through agency cover. 

• Loss of key staff through voluntary severance/redundancy and the 
role of the manager in minimising the reliance on agency staff. 

• The control and safeguards in place to minimise the risk to 
vulnerable people. 

• Agency cover for key social work staff and the aspirations for long 
term solutions in Children and Young People’s Services. 

• Duration of assignments for agency cover, the maximum extensions 
and the long term aim. 

• Flexible working arrangements, opportunities and options for staff. 

• Reliance on agency cover for sickness absence and the areas most 
at risk. 

• Managerial responsibility to manage flexible working given that the 
vast majority of requests come from women. 

• Implementation of the Temporary Agency Workers Policy, its 
performance management and an appreciation of the hard work 
undertaken by staff. 

Page 2



SELF REGULATION SELECT COMMISSION - 27/03/14 25B 

 

• Noting  the Temporary Agency Workers Policy was subject to review 
by the end of 2014. 

• Appropriate co-ordination and redeployment of staff and the 
confidence of managers to implement. 

 
The Select Commission were informed of plans to review the Temporary 
Agency Workers Policy by the end of 2014 and it was suggested that this 
be included as part of the work programme going forward. 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the continued use of agency workers, if managed in 
accordance with the Temporary Agency Workers policy and supporting 
guidance, be supported. 
 
(2)  That the review of the Temporary Agency Workers Policy be included 
as part of the work programme going forward. 
 

65. REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31ST 

JANUARY 2014  

 

 Further to Minute No. 207 of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 19th 
March, 2014, consideration as given to a report presented by Stuart 
Booth, Director of Finance, which provided details of progress on the 
delivery of the Revenue Budget for 2013/14 based on performance for the 
first ten months of the financial year.  It was currently forecast that the 
Council would overspend against its Budget by £1.183m (+0.5%). This 
represented an improvement in the forecast outturn of -£934k since the 
December monitoring report. The main reasons for the forecast 
overspend continued to be:- 

 

• The continuing service demand and cost pressures for safeguarding 
vulnerable children across the Borough. 

• Income pressures within Environment and Development and ICT 
Services. 

• Continuing Health Care income pressures within Adult and 
Children’s Services. 

• Additional, one-off property costs relating to the continued 
rationalisation of the Council’s asset portfolio as part of the efficiency 
drive to reduce operational costs. 

• Some savings targets were currently pending delivery in full in 
2013/14.  

 
The moratorium on all except ‘essential’ spend had been in place since 
16th October, 2013. The impact of this and the approval of 102 
applications for Voluntary Early Retirement/Voluntary Severance 
(VER/VS) were now reflected in this monitoring report. 45 applications 
were also currently under consideration.  
 
Reference was made to the reasons for the projected pressure from 
winter maintenance given that the winter had been relatively mild and an 
explanation was provided on budget and salt usage. 

Page 3



26B  SELF REGULATION SELECT COMMISSION - 27/03/14  

 

 
Resolved:-  That the current forecast outturn and significant financial 
challenge presented for the Council to deliver a balanced revenue budget 
for 2013/14  and the actions implemented to address the forecast 
overspend be noted and welcomed. 
 

66. CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING 2013/14 AND CAPITAL 

PROGRAMME BUDGET 2014/15 TO 2016/17  

 

 Further to Minute No. 208 of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 19th 
March, 2014, consideration as given to a report presented by Stuart 
Booth, Director of Finance, which provided details of the current forecast 
outturn for the 2013/14 programme and enabled the Council to review the 
capital programme for the financial years 2014/15 to 2016/17. 
 
The budget process that led to the original Capital Programme for 
2013/14 to 2016/17 ensured that the Council’s capital investment plans 
were aligned with its strategic priorities and vision for Rotherham. 
 
In order to maintain that strategic link and make best use of the capital 
resources available to the Council, it was important that the programme 
was kept under regular review and where necessary revisions were made. 
This programme was initially reviewed in July, 2013, following the 
finalisation of the 2012/13 outturn capital expenditure and financing and 
had now been the subject of further reviews, the result of which was 
reflected in the Directorate summary table as set out in the report along 
with the detailed analysis of the programme for each Directorate. 
 
Clarification was sought on the A57 Improvement Scheme, which was 
nearing completion, and whether the schedule of works completion date 
had slipped any. 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the report be received and the contents noted. 
 
(2)   That the recommendation to approve the updated 2013/14 to 
2016/17 Capital Programme be noted. 
 

67. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING  

 

 Resolved:-  That the next meeting of the Self Regulation Select 
Commission take place on Thursday, 24th April, 2014 at 3.30 p.m. 
 

 

Page 4



 

   
1  Meeting: Self Regulation Select Commission 

2  
 

Date: 8th May, 2014 

3  Title: Revenue Budget Monitoring for the period ending 
28th February 2014 
 

4  Directorate: Resources (for all) 

 
5 Summary 
 
This report provides details of the significant progress on the delivery of the Revenue 
Budget for 2013/14 based on performance for the first 11 months of the financial 
year. It is currently forecast that the Council will underspend against its Budget by -
£36k (-0.016%). This represents an improvement in the forecast outturn of £1.219m 
since the January monitoring report. Despite the overall balanced forecast there are 
a number of pressure areas (detailed in appendix 1), offset by savings and 
underspends elsewhere. 
 
Delivery of this very positive forecast outturn would not have been possible without 
the early implementation of Cabinet’s Budget Strategy to bring spend back in line 
during the financial year. This included both the implementation of the in-year 
moratorium on non-essential spend (October 2013) and the release of 126 staff 
through Voluntary Early Retirement/Voluntary Severance (VER/VS). Implementation 
of the moratorium on non-essential spend has adversely impacted on some services 
ability to deliver income targets (most notably ICT services), however, overall a slight 
underspend is still forecast.   
 
Members are asked to note that meetings continue to take place with the Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) with regard to levels and timing of Continuing Health 
Care (CHC) funding. Details of progress to date are included within this report. 
 
It is proposed that the next budget monitoring report will be the Council’s 2013/14 
Outturn Report which will be presented to Cabinet in June once the Council’s 
Statutory Unaudited Financial Statements have been prepared.  
 
 
 
Recommendations 
 

• Self Regulation is asked to note the request to Cabinet to note: 
 

o The significant achievement of a balanced forecast outturn. 
o The progress made to date in respect of CHC negotiations. 

  
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 8Page 5



 

7.1    Proposals and Details 
This report presents details of spending against budget by Directorate covering 
the first 11 months of the 2013/14 financial year – April 2013 to February 2014 
– and forecast costs and income to 31st March 2014.  
 
Resources Services which are currently being matrix-managed by Environment 
& Development Services (excluding ICT) and Neighbourhood & Adult Services 
are included within these respective Directorates.    
 

7.2  The Overall Position 
    

Directorate/Service  Annual 
Budget 
2013/14 

 
 

£’000 

Projected 
Outturn 
2013/14 

 
 

£’000 

Variance  
after Actions  

(over(+)/under(-) 
spend) 

 
£’000 

 
 
 
 
 
% 

Children & Young 
People Services 

46,531 47,499 +968 +2.1 

Environment and 
Development Services   

47,433 47,269 -164 -0.1 

Neighbourhoods & Adult  
Services  

79,659 79,129 -530 -0.7 

Resources 13,516 14,000 +484 +3.6 

Central Services 34,335 33,541 -794 -2.3 

     

TOTAL  221,474 221,438 -36 - 

     

Housing Revenue 
Account (HRA) 

73,090 70,122 -2,968 -4.1 

 
 Appendix 1 to this report provides a detailed explanation of the key areas of 

forecast over / underspend by Directorate. The summarised position for each 
Directorate is described below. 

  
 Children & Young People’s Directorate (+£968k forecast overspend) 
 

The forecast overspend for Children’s Services has improved (£156k) since the 
last report. (+£1.124m in the January monitoring report). The forecast 
overspend position is largely due to pressures within the Children & Families 
Safeguarding Service. The number of looked after children requiring 
placements at the end of January 2014 was 389, an increase of 3 since 
January but a reduction of 6 since the end of March 2013. The forecast outturn 
for Children’s services reflects the additional continuing health care income 
being now received from Health and the increase in Early Years (including 
Children’s Centres) underspend, which is now -£400k. It also reflects the £300k 
pressure as a result of Rawmarsh School converting to an academy as the 
deficit will remain with the Local Authority.    
 

Page 6



 

Pressures on budgets for provision of Out of Authority Residential placements 
(+£1.409m), remand placements (+£180k) and the provision of independent 
Foster Care placements (+£267k) are the main service pressures. Although the 
number of Looked After Children has fallen since March 2013 the cost of 
placements has increased as children are presenting with more complex needs. 
The service is looking at how they can find suitable, alternative, value for money 
placements to meet the needs of these young people. 
 
The Fostering & Adoption service is projecting to have 31 new adopters by the 
end of March 2014 which is 10 above the Invest to Save target and 13 greater 
than the number approved in 2012/13. The service is also projecting to be on 
target for the recruitment of new foster carers at a net gain of 21. 
 
Forecast savings across other parts of the Directorate are helping to mitigate 
these key pressures. Details are shown in Appendix 1. 

 
Children’s Social Care services remain under pressure despite the services’ 
proactive approach to drive down costs including: 

 

• Continued operation and challenge by the Multi-Agency Support Panel  

• Successful work undertaken by the Commissioning Team which has 
resulted in the commissioning and re-commissioning of service provider 
contracts with significant cost reductions/cost avoidance (£714k) to date in 
2013/14. 

 
 Environment & Development Services including Internal Audit, Asset 

Management, Communications & Marketing and Policy & Planning (-£164k 
forecast underspend) 

 
 The Directorate is currently forecasting an overall underspend of -£164k 

through a combination of under and overspends: Customer Services (+£69k) 
and Planning and Regeneration (+£160k), Streetpride (-£130k), 
Communications (-£9k) and Audit & Asset Management (-£185k). The Business 
Unit is reporting a forecast underspend of -£69k.  

 
 The forecast overspend now includes a forecast overspend of £166k for the 

Winter Pressures budget. It should however be noted that in 2012/13 this 
budget overspent by £466k. Details of the forecast overspend are included in 
Appendix 1. 
 
Neighbourhoods and Adult Services including Commissioning, 
Procurement, Performance & Quality and Cohesion and Public Health -
£530k forecast underspend) 
 
Overall the Directorate (including ring-fenced Public Health funded services) is 
forecasting an underspend of -£530k. Within this, Adult Services are forecasting 
a slight underspend (-£24k) and Neighbourhood services a forecast 
underspend of -£321k. Commissioning, Procurement, Performance & Quality 
and Cohesion services are forecasting a collective underspend of (-£185k). 
Additional income from Health is now offsetting key pressures including income 

Page 7



 

for clients with continuing health care needs (£1.5m) and delays in 
implementing the restructure within in-house residential care services and 
recurrent budget pressures on demand for Direct Payments (Older People, 
Physical & Sensory Disability clients), Older People’s domiciliary care, and day 
care transport provision for clients with Learning Disabilities. 
 
There are also recurrent budget pressures on demand for Direct Payments 
(Older People, Physical & Sensory Disability clients), Older People’s domiciliary 
care, and day care transport provision for clients with Learning Disabilities.  
 
Public Health Services are currently forecasting a balanced outturn. (Ring-
fenced funding). 
 
The forecast position for Neighbourhoods and Adult Services is made up of a 
number of under and overspends, detailed in Appendix 1. 
 
Resources Directorate (+£484k forecast overspend) 

  
Overall the Directorate is forecasting an overspend of +£484k. This is largely in 
respect of income pressures in the ICT service (+£850k) significantly mitigated 
by forecast savings elsewhere in the Directorate – most notably in respect of 
HR & Payroll reduced costs and increased income generation. The forecast 
position for Resources is made up of both forecast under and overspends, 
shown in Appendix 1.   
 
Central Services (-£794k forecast underspend) 
 
In setting the 2013/14 Budget, the Council proposed a recurrent savings target 
of £300k in respect of renegotiating Staff Terms and Conditions. Options for 
progressing this saving have been considered and rejected by the Unions. This 
target currently remains undelivered. 
 
When the 2012/13 budget was agreed it included a £2m savings target for 
Commissioning Savings. Currently £387k of that target remains to be delivered.  
 
There is currently a forecast pressure of +£393k on the Land Bank due to the 
need to keep vacant council owned properties secure until they are sold or 
demolished. 
 
There is also a forecast pressure of £109k in respect of Statutory Costs (eg 
Planning Notices and key investigations).  
 
As reported previously the unused Council Contingency Fund (-£600k) is 
available to mitigate budget pressures across the Council. Additionally, during 
the budget setting process for 2014/15 recurrent savings of £1.3m were 
identified in respect of revenue savings deliverable through the refinancing of 
capital spend originally funded by prudential borrowing. There is also a forecast 
underspend on the budget for External Audit costs (-£83k) – these are recurrent 
and were agreed as part of the 2014/15 Budget Setting Process. These savings 
are also available to support the Council in 2013/14. 

Page 8



 

7.3 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) (Forecast underspend -£2.968m) 
 

The Housing Revenue Account is now forecasting a contribution to reserves 
compared with the agreed budget.  The HRA had budgeted to use £2.599m 
from reserves but current forecasts of a £2.968m underspend is now resulting 
in a contribution to reserves of £369k.  
 
 
 7.4 Agency, Consultancy and Non-Contractual Overtime Costs  
 
The forecast outturn position includes costs in respect of Agency staff, 
Consultancy and non-contractual overtime. Detailed below is the analysis by 
Directorate, including comparisons with 2012/13 financial year: 
 
Agency 
 

Directorate Outturn 
2012/13 

Cumulative 
to Feb 2013 

Cumulative 
to Feb 2014 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Children & Young People’s 
Services 

546 471 742 

Neighbourhoods & Adult 
Services 

530 369 297 

Environment & Development 
Services 

266 205 532 

Resources 194 182 134 

TOTAL 1,536 1,227 1,705 

 
Agency staff have in the main, been used as a temporary measure to help 
introduce more robust and sustainable reductions to the overall staff cost base.  
This has shown a more marked increase this year to date compared to last year 
as a result of meeting the demands of various reviews and restructures. These 
are being kept under close review. The Agency costs in the table above are 
significantly mitigated by budget savings from vacant posts.  
 
Within Children’s Services the increased agency costs during the year have 
been incurred as a result of the need to cover the Interim Director of 
Safeguarding, Children & Families post; vacant social worker and team 
manager posts, and social work posts where staff are absent from work for 
sickness reasons or on maternity leave; and vacancies, sickness and maternity 
leave in residential care. The statutory responsibilities and performance and 
inspection regimes in children’s social care mean that posts can only be left 
unfilled for short periods, and colleague cover for absence is not sustainable. 
Overall, sickness and turnover is at acceptable levels, below the council 
average.  

 
Recruitment to the permanent Director post was successfully completed in 
March and the appointee will be taking up post in August 2014.  
 

Page 9



 

All team manager posts were filled through recruitment in late 2013 and all 
appointees are now in post. RMBC’s terms and conditions for social worker 
posts (Band G-J) require only one month’s notice. Allowing for advertising and 
arranging interviews typically takes a period of 7 weeks with appointees usually 
being required to work 4-8 weeks’ notice, this leaves a significant period of 
operating with a vacancy so where cover is essential the use of agency staff is 
unavoidable. The service is working to combat this by having monthly 
recruitment campaigns, but the vast majority of applications come from newly 
qualified staff. This is a regional issue – there is an acknowledged shortage of 
experienced social workers in the region.  
 
The DfE recently released findings from the first round of social work workforce 
data which LA’s are required to report on. Rotherham ranks amongst the lowest 
Authorities for use of agency staff and turnover compared with its statistical 
neighbours.    

 
The use of agency staff in Adult Services has reduced compared to February 
2013 levels and relates to social work vacancies and the need to maintain 
essential cover in some services areas, and provision of cover arrangements 
pending the implementation of a revised timetable, agreed with the Council, for 
the new staffing structure in Residential Care. 
 
Environment and Development Services agency costs are greater compared 
with the cumulative spend to February last year due to cover arrangements 
within Waste services pending the implementation of a new structure and 
resourcing additional Highway Maintenance capital works. Also, seasonal 
Grounds Maintenance work is now undertaken by a combination of seasonally 
employed staff and agency workers to minimise the cost of cover 
arrangements. 
 
Agency spend also exists within ICT services where Agency staff are covering a 
key role (Senior Network Specialist) which the service has been unable to 
recruit to. 
 
Consultancy 
 

Directorate Outturn 
2012/13 

Cumulative 
to Feb 2013 

Cumulative 
to Feb 2014 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Children & Young People’s 
Services 

338 275 217 

Neighbourhoods & Adult 
Services 

0 0 47 

Environment & Development 
Services 

108 62 159 

Resources 1 1 23 

TOTAL 447 338 446 

 
 
 

Page 10



 

Consultancy expenditure within Children’s Services for the first 11 months of 
2013/14 has reduced considerably when compared with the same period last 
year. The consultancy expenditure predominantly relates to the School 
Effectiveness Service and services funded by external funding. School 
Effectiveness consultancy costs are funded from a combination of revenue 
budget, Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) and earned income from Schools. 
 
NAS Consultancy spend is within Neighbourhoods services and is in respect of 
Green Deal Housing energy advice and help to improve employment 
outcomes/prospects of future employment for long-term unemployed 
individuals. This spend is largely grant funded.  
 
Consultancy costs within EDS predominantly relate to review of potential 
development sites and transportation links within the Local Development Plan. 
 
Resources Consultancy costs mainly in respect of Legal Services associated 
with the investigation into sexual exploitation of children and specialist ICT 
Services.  
 
Non-Contractual Overtime 
 

Directorate Outturn 
2012/13 

Cumulative 
to Feb 2013 

Cumulative 
to Feb 2014 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Children & Young People’s 
Services 

84 79 112 

Neighbourhoods & Adult 
Services 

403 356 347 

Environment & Development 
Services 

499 423 476 

Resources 139 128 129 

TOTAL 1,125 986 1,064 

 
Children’s Services overtime is largely in respect of safeguarding in residential 
care homes. OfSTED requirements are that, if possible, agency staff are not 
used to cover vacancies, hence the reliance on overtime in the short term 
pending newly recruited staff taking up post.  
 
Overtime spend within Adult Services is mainly due to the need to maintain 
statutory staffing levels in residential, home care, day care services and social 
work posts and represents cover for sickness and time delays for notice periods 
when recruiting to vacant posts.  
 
Environment and Development Services overtime spend is predominantly in 
respect of Streetpride Services – Highways, Network Maintenance, Street 
Lighting, Street Cleansing and Grounds Maintenance where work is often 
undertaken at times to avoid inconvenience and danger to the public. Planning 
and Regeneration Services and Waste Management Services for sickness and 
holiday cover. The Environment & Development Services overtime cost to end 
of January also includes provision of cover within Facilities Services (+£24k).  

Page 11



 

  
The Resources Directorate’s overtime is predominantly in respect of Revenues 
and Benefits associated with the service carrying a number of vacancies and 
significant workload pressures primarily brought about by welfare reform 
changes that are resulting in additional customer contact and income collection 
and recovery activity (£73k), maintaining ICT services (£33k), maintaining 
Financial systems (£1k), HR and Payroll Services (£7k), and Town Hall 
attendants (£15k). 
 
7.5 Collection Fund 
 
Council Tax: Based on the first 11 months of 2013/14 collection rates indicate 
that the Council is now expected to achieve slightly above the budgeted level of 
Council Tax - £78.3m. (97% Collection Rate). The value of Council Tax 
collected is over £5m more than that collected in 2013/14. This increase 
represents the additional properties within the borough, new Council Tax 
income paid through the Council Tax Reduction Scheme and additional income 
from revisions to the policy on second homes and empty properties.  
 
Business Rates: The Council is currently forecasting to achieve slightly more 
than the budgeted level of business rates (£34.304m).The collection rate is now 
expected to be 98.2% which is 0.2% greater than last year. 
 
These Collection Rates are a considerable achievement – with regard to 
business rates, as previously reported, there has been considerable uncertainty 
over the number and value of appeals - particularly those backdated to earlier 
years – which can have a significant impact on the level of rates collectable 
going forward.  Details of the number and value of appeals are held by the VOA 
which has only recently made this information available to authorities.  
 
7.6 Continuing Health Care negotiations 
 
Members will be aware that work has been taking place between the local 
authority and the Clinical Commissioning Group to: 

 

• Review the way in which funding is allocated to children and young 
people and adults eligible for Continuing Care 

• Review the clinical assessments for current children and young people 
eligible for Continuing Health Care, and examine the levels of funding 
allocated 

• Consider new cases which might be eligible for Continuing Health Care 
and carry out a clinical assessment 

• Timely challenge/appeal of borderline decisions 

• Review the system of decision making through the Continuing Care 
Panel 

 
 

Through a series of meetings, senior officers from the local authority and the 
CCG have agreed the methodology, and work is starting to review children and 
young people’s cases through clinical assessment. These will then be 

Page 12



 

presented to the newly constituted Continuing Care Panel for consideration 
against the national guidance.  

 
For Children and Young People’s service the CCG have agreed a recalculated 
invoice which is higher than the original block grant; and have also set aside 
additional funding for 2013-14 to provide for any cases which are eligible for 
Continuing Health Care at a higher rate. The full financial impact of this is not 
yet known, but the current invoice of £696k has been agreed. This is reflected 
in the reduced forecast outturn presented for CYPS in this report.  

 
Further information on the financial impact will be provided to members as the 
work progresses.  

 
 
8. Finance 
        
 The financial issues are discussed in section 7 above. 
 
9 Risks and Uncertainties 

 
At a time of economic difficulty and tight financial constraints, managing spend 
in line with the Council’s Budget is paramount.  Careful scrutiny of expenditure 
and income across all services and close budget monitoring therefore remain a 
top priority if the Council is to deliver both its annual and medium term financial 
plans while sustaining its overall financial resilience. 
 

10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 

The delivery of the Council’s Revenue Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan 
within the parameters agreed at the start of the current financial year is 
essential if the objectives of the Council’s Policy agenda are to be achieved. 
Financial performance is a key element within the assessment of the Council’s 
overall performance framework.   

   
11.  Background Papers and Consultation 
 

• November Revenue Budget Monitoring Report – Cabinet December 2013 

• Revenue Budget and Council Tax for 2013/14 Report to Council 6th March 2013. 

• Strategic Directors and Service Directors of the Council 
 
Contact Name: Stuart Booth, Director of Financial Services, ext. 22034   
Stuart.Booth@Rotherham.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Page 13



 

Appendix 1 
 
Key reasons for forecast over / underspends 
 

 
Children & Young People’s Services (+£968k forecast overspend) 
 
The key factors contributing to the forecast overspend are: 
 
Directorate Wide (+£279k forecast overspend) 
The forecast over spend is due to the inclusion of a provision for the forecast deficit 
position on Rawmarsh Comprehensive School when it converts to an academy in 
2014/15 (+£300k) and a forecast overspend on the Central budget due to the additional 
costs of Records Management (+£9k) & supplies & services (+£2k).  This is partially 
offset by a forecast underspend on pensions costs (-£32k) due a reduction in number of 
payments. 

 
Safeguarding, Children and Families Service Wide (+£93k forecast overspend) 
The forecast over spend on legal fees (+£110k) due largely to an increase in court fees 
notified to us in July 2013, agency & advertising costs for the Director of Safeguarding 
post (+£14k) and inspection consultancy costs (+£38k) is partially offset by staff cost 
savings (-£69k) within Business Support. 
 
Child Protection Teams (+£28k forecast overspend) 
This forecast overspend is due to confirmation of a reduction in the DSG contribution 
from schools (+£49k) offset by forecast underspends on supplies in the Safeguarding 
Unit due to the moratorium (-£7k) and savings on the Advocacy contract within the 
Children’s Rights Team (-£14k). 
 
Children in Need Social Work Teams (+£177k forecast overspend) 
This forecast overspend is in respect of Agency staff costs & additional staff 
appointments within the Children in Need North team & the Borough Wide team 
(+£151k), tribunal, premises & mileage costs in the Children in Need South team 
(+£27k) and a charge for call handling for the Out of Hours Team (+£33k) partially 
offset with staff cost savings from the Early Intervention teams (-£13k) & the Family 
Assessment team (-£21k). 
 
Looked After Children (+£1,102k forecast overspend) 
The service is forecasting an overspend mainly due to the cost of out of authority 
residential placements (+£1,409k), remand placements (+£180k) and independent 
fostering placements (+£267k). This includes a provision for additional Continuing Care 
income from CCG of £221k above the projected income. Further details of placements 
are below: 
 

 

Page 14



 

Placement Type

Average 

No. of 

placements

Average 

Cost of 

Placement

Average 

No. of 

placements

Average 

Cost of 

Placement

Average No. 

of 

placements

Average 

Cost of 

Placement

 Actual 

Number of 

placements

£ per week £ per week £ per week

Out of Authority Residential 18 3,022 21.1 3,206 24.7 3,149 31

R1 Accommodation only U/A U/A U/A U/A U/A U/A 11

R2 Accommodation & therapy U/A U/A U/A U/A U/A U/A 10

R3 Accommodation, therapy & education U/A U/A U/A U/A U/A U/A 6

R4 Parent & Baby U/A U/A U/A U/A U/A U/A 0

Secure U/A U/A U/A U/A U/A U/A 4

Remand U/A U/A U/A U/A 1.6 3,101 0

Independent Fostering Agencies 125 887 121 874 107.1 884 104

Standard U/A U/A 74.8 745 66.4 764 63

Complex U/A U/A 27.2 938 23.6 1,158 28

Specialist U/A U/A 19 1,287 17.1 978 13

In-house Fostering 158.8 230 162 246 165.2 244 160

Note: U/A - This detailed breakdown was unavailable at the time but will be in the future

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 as at 28
th
 February

 
 
Out of Authority Residential Care 

• The number of children in residential out of authority placements as at 
end of February 2014 is 31 (an increase of 2 since January and an 
increase of 6 since 31 March 2013).   

• Due to the increasing complexity of children’s needs being admitted into 
residential out of authority placements & despite successful negotiations 
by the Commissioning team to minimise the cost of these placements, the 
average cost per week of these placements has increased from £3,022 in 
2011/12 to £3,149 currently – an increase of 4.2%. 

• The average number of placements in the same period has risen by 6.7 
(37%) 

• From 1 April 2013 children’s remand placements are fully funded by the 
Local Authority & RMBC was provided with a national grant of £78k to 
cover these additional costs. The cost of these placements in 2013/14 so 
far is £258k, which shows that the grant was grossly inadequate.  There 
are however currently no remand placements.  
 

Independent Fostering Agencies 

• The number of children in Independent Foster Care as at end February 
2014 is 104 (a reduction of 1 since January & a reduction of 9 since the 
end of March 2013).   

• The average weekly cost of a placement has reduced by an average of 
£3 or 0.3% since 2011/12. 

• The average number of placements during the same period has 
decreased by 17.9 (14%) 
 
 

In-house Fostering 

• The number of children in in-house fostering placements as at end of 
February is 160 (a reduction of 1 since January & a reduction of 11 since 
the end of March 2013). 

• The average weekly cost of a placement has risen by an average of £14 
or 6% since 2011/12. 

Page 15



 

• The average number of placements during the same period has 
increased by 6.4 (4%) 

 
A further cost within this area is +£28k that paid for a consultant to review health 
care contributions towards children’s continuing health care needs which has 
shown its worth by being able to raise a provision for £221k of additional income. 

 
An additional overspend has been incurred (+£15k) for a court ordered care 
package. These pressures are partially offset by projected underspends in 
Contact Worker Team (-£29k) due to delays in recruitment, Children’s Homes (-
£124k) mainly due to not staffing the Silverwood annexe, Fostering Services (-
£283k) due to a forecast underspend on fostering allowances & equipment, 
Residence Orders & Families together placements, (-£166k) due to the re-
profiling of adoption placements and the impact of this on inter-agency adoption 
costs & maximising the use of grants, (-£70k) reduced use of transport for LAC 
children & (-£125k) in Leaving care on accommodation costs & a reduction in the 
number of weekly payments. 

 
Disability Services (+£111k forecast overspend) 
This service is now forecasting an overspend mainly due to overtime & agency costs at 
Cherry Tree & Liberty residential homes due to the need to cover sickness & vacancies 
(+£85k), and an overspend on Direct Payments (+£88k) partially offset by forecast staff 
costs underspends within the Disability Team (-£62k). The forecast overspend on 
Direct Payments is due to providing carers to support families with children with 
extremely complex needs which would otherwise require Out of Authority residential 
placements at a much higher cost. 
 
Remaining CYPS Services (-£822k) 
The overall CYPS overspend is also partially offset by projected under spends on 
School Effectiveness (-£22k) due to some delays in recruitment, in the Special 
Education Provision (-£98k) mainly due to in year redundancies & savings on staff 
vacancies, (-£400k) due to ceasing non-essential spend & reallocation of funding in the 
Early Years’ service, (-£294k) staff cost savings, ceasing non-essential spend & 
maximising grants in the Integrated Youth Support Service and a further contribution 
from the Education Catering Service (-£8k).  
 

 
Environment & Development Services-£164k forecast underspend) 
 
The above forecast underspend includes the Winter Pressures forecast overspend of 
+£166k. In 2012/13 these costs exceeded budget by +£466k.  
 
Streetpride -£130k forecast underspend 
 
The position at April – January was +£51k forecast overspend.  Streetpride services 
are now reporting an improved position of -£130k forecast underspend. 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



 

Network Management +£218k forecast overspend. 
 
Network Management is now showing a projected pressure for winter maintenance of 
+£166k.  Parking continues to report a pressure of (+£182k) which is mainly due to a 
shortfall on income recovery. Other service pressures of +£19k exist within Drainage.  
These are being partially offset by increased income from Streetworks and 
Enforcements (-£56k) and reduced Street Lighting energy costs (-£44k), reduced costs 
on Highways Maintenance (-£46k) and in Public Rights of Way (-£3k). 
 
Waste Services -£30k forecast underspend 
 
Waste Management services have pressures primarily on income from sale of 
recyclables as a result of a general reduction in waste volumes, and from commercial 
waste contracts which are still less than budgeted following the downturn in economic 
activity.  Current projections have been reduced to a pressure of (+£193k), this is being 
mitigated by Waste Disposal  projecting to be underspent by (-£181k) based on known 
changes to tipping locations, fluctuations in waste streams and there is also an 
underspend of (-£42k) on the Waste PFI project mainly due to the late implementation 
of recruiting to a Project Support post. 
 
Corporate Transport Unit -£293k forecast underspend 
 
Mainly due to expected reduced costs on Home to School Transport (-£184k) and (-
£52K) due to savings on operator licences and receipt of operator grant payments.  A 
surplus on Stores is still anticipated -£57k as a result of the materials issued, in the 
main for Street Lighting schemes. 
 
Leisure and Green Spaces  +£110k forecast overspend   
 
Green Spaces position now shows a pressure +£110k; + £32k non-delivery of full 
allotments saving proposal, +£123k Country Parks due to VAT issue, this position has 
worsened from last month due to approved additional spend at TCP for cafe 
improvements and a boat/container purchase (this position may change as further VAT 
analysis is being undertaken on RVCP income for train/playdales/watersports). Further 
savings -£45k have been reported on recreational grounds and urban parks mainly due 
to vacant posts. 
 
Leisure Services are reporting a net nil position as follows: Sports Development (+£9k)  
late implementation of Stadium saving and (+£4k) on Landscape Design, (-£7k) on 
Trees & Woodlands due to increase in works and (-£6k) on LGS Management and  
Admin. due to a vacant post, moratorium and savings on Project Development as fewer 
projects than anticipated.   
 
Across the rest of Streetpride services an improved position is being reported, -£189k 
partially due to increased income from current transportation and highways work which 
is offsetting some pressures within Community Services, mainly due to increased 
pressures regarding fly-tipping and a shortfall in income within grounds maintenance 
totalling +£54k.   
 
 

Page 17



 

Regeneration, Planning, Customer and Cultural Services  +£229k 
 
At April – January a forecast overspend of +£399k was reported. Budgets from Policy 
and Partnerships are now showing within this Service Area.  The details below are the 
key pressures as at the end of February. 
 
Regeneration and Planning (+£160k) : 
 
The key pressures within Regeneration and Planning are : (+£329k) from Planning  due 
to reduced income from planning applications, additional required spend on the Local 
Development Plan and a VAT payment due from previous years, resulting from an 
audit.   Smaller pressures are reported from Markets (+£24k). These are being partially 
offset by identified savings (-£92k) from higher than expected occupancy levels at the 
Business Centres and (-£59k) savings has been declared by RIDO (Rotherham 
Investment and Development Office) due to grant funding being used.  Further net 
savings of (-£42k) have been identified from other areas. 

  
Customer and Cultural Services (+£69k) : 
 
Customer Services are showing a combined overspend of (+£233k):  Customer Access 
continue to report an unachievable saving from 2012/13 of (+£80k) and a further 
(+£110k) from the 2013/14 savings proposals, partially mitigated by some staff savings 
(-£5k) and further pressures within the Customer Contact Centre (+£31k). Some further 
savings have been declared due to reduced support costs (-£25k) and due to a delay 
on spend for computer refresh (-£15k).  
 
Riverside Library is now reporting an over spend largely due to the need to pay relief 
staff (+£7k), Registrars are reporting an overspend of (+£16k) and Cashiers are 
reporting (+£36k) due to increased charges from use of pay point and post offices for 
receipt of income. A pressure still remains on the Customer Service Centre regarding 
security costs (+£20k).  There are some small savings across Customer Services (-
£22k) due to the moratorium. 
 
Cultural Services are reporting an underspend (-£164k) 
The change in venue for celebratory services did create a financial pressure which has 
now been fully mitigated by some staff savings and the impact of the moratorium 
across Heritage Services. Savings of (-£4k) are being shown on museum stores having 
vacated a site earlier than anticipated, together with (-£7k) on Heritage Services due to 
reduced running costs for Boston Castle and general sites. Across Theatres and Arts 
there is a combined saving of (-£123k) due to some salaries savings, additional income 
at the Theatre and due to the moratorium.  Within Library Services due to the 
moratorium and staff leaving under the voluntary severance scheme net savings have 
been declared totalling (-£30k). 
 
Business Unit -£69k 
 
The service are now reporting an underspend due to a decision being made to 
implement a reduced training programme -£53k.  Further surplus is being released from 
staff savings -£7k, and reduced spend as a result of the moratorium across the service 
(-£9k). 

Page 18



 

 

Communications -£9k 
 
The pressures within this Service are around staffing (+£17k) within the 
Communications Team.  These costs are being mitigated due to additional external 
income generated by the ICT Design Studio (-£8k) and Rotherham Show (-£3k), and 
further savings of (-£15k) due to the imposed moratorium on spend. 
 
Asset Management, Audit and Insurance -£185k 
 
There are pressures across the Asset Management service: unbudgeted property 
disposal fees (+£37k), Land & Property income under-recovery (+£62k), operational 
costs of Community Buildings (+£36k), increased accommodation costs, Emergency 
Planning (+£9k) and Internal Audit (+£20k). These forecast pressures are mitigated 
through Rates rebates in respect of Riverside House (-£100k), costs in respect of 
Carbon Reduction commitments less than budget (-£129k) and further savings have 
been declared within Facilities Services (-£29k), and across property related services (-
£59k), and Design and Corporate Projects (-£32k). Identified pressures on the Land 
Bank are being reported centrally. 
 

 
Neighbourhoods & Adult Services (-£530k forecast underspend) and Public 
Health Services (Balanced budget) 
 
Adult Services are currently forecasting a slight underspend of -£24k.The key 
underlying budget pressures and underspends include: 
 
Older People (+£188k) 
 
Forecast overspend on In-House Residential Care due to delays in implementing the 
2013/14 budget savings target (+£168k), increase in Direct Payments over budget 
(+£680k) and overall forecast overspend on Domiciliary Care services (+£337k) due to 
an increase in demand for independent sector care. 
  
These is also a forecast overspend on independent sector residential and nursing care 
(+£836k) due to less Continuing Health Care income and pressures due to lower than 
expected discharges than forecast (74 additional clients in placement than budgeted), 
this is after additional income from property charges being received. These pressures 
are being partially reduced by a number of forecast underspends including: planned 
delays in developing dementia services (-£310k), carers breaks (-£183k) and additional 
income and delays in enhancements in Rothercare and equipment (-£336k). Higher 
than anticipated staff turnover within Assessment & Care Management and community 
support, plus additional income from Health including funding for winter pressures (-
£838k), staff vacancies within Day Care services (-£88k), additional income in Extra 
Care Housing (-£22k) and Transport (-£34k) plus planned delays in recruiting to vacant 
posts within locality services (-£22k). 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



 

Learning Disabilities (+£148k) 
 
There is a forecast overspend on Day Care (+£166k) due to delays in implementation 
of the day care review including an increase in fees and charges, plus a recurrent 
budget pressure on transport. There is a forecast overspend in independent sector 
home care (+£89k) due to delays in meeting an agreed budget saving plus additional 
costs due to staff cover within In House Residential care (+£26k). Review of high cost 
placements is now resulting in a forecast underspend of (-£4k) in independent 
residential and nursing care. High cost placements within independent day care and 
community support are resulting in a forecast overspend of +£42k. These forecast 
overspends are partially mitigated by delays in developing Supported Living schemes 
plus additional funding from health (-£50k), efficiency savings on Service Level 
Agreements (SLA’s) for advice and information (-£64k), lower than expected increase 
in demand for direct payments (-£26k) and planned delays in recruitment within 
Assessment & Care Management (-£31k).   
 
Mental Health (-£462k) 
 
Delays in the budget savings plan to move clients into community support services 
together with additional demand for direct payments have been offset by additional 
funding from health leaving an overall underspend of -£462k.  
 
Physical & Sensory Disabilities (+£407k) 
 
Further increase in demand for Direct Payments (+10 clients) together with recurrent 
cost pressure (+£667k) and a continued increase in demand for domiciliary care 
+£175k. These pressures are being partially offset by forecast underspends within 
residential and nursing care, day care, provision of equipment and efficiency savings on 
contracts (-£435k). 
 
Adults Safeguarding (-£114K) 
 
Forecast underspend due to lower than expected staff turnover and use of agency 
support offset by additional grant funding to support domestic violence. 
 
Supporting People (-£102k) 
 
Efficiency savings on subsidy contracts have already been delivered against budget (-
£102k).   
 
 
Adults General (-£89k) 
 
This includes the cross cutting budgets (Workforce planning and training, and corporate 
charges) which are forecasting an overall underspend based on the level of charges 
incurred last year plus savings on training budgets and additional funding to support 
HIV. 
 
 
 

Page 20



 

Neighbourhoods General Fund (-£321k) 
 
The projected year end outturn position for Neighbourhoods shows a forecast under 
spend of (-£321k).  
 
The main reason for the forecast underspend is higher than expected staff turnover 
within Trading Standards and Licensing, savings on non-pay budgets due to the 
moratorium on non-essential spend plus additional grant funding and income from the 
Dignity contract. The overall forecast underspend includes underspends within the 
Members Community Leadership Fund (-£16k) and Dispersed Units Trading Account (-
£48k) which will be subject to a request for carry-forward at the year end.     
 
Commissioning, Policy & Performance services are forecasting an underspend of -
£155k mainly in respect of staff cost savings.  
 
Procurement Team – a forecast underspend of -£27k in respect of staff cost savings. 
 
Community Cohesion – minor underspend on non-pay budgets of -£3k 
 
 
Public Health (Balanced Budget) 
 
Public Health services were transferred from Health to Local Authorities on 1 April 
2013. The service is funded by a ring fenced specific grant from the Department of 
Health. For Rotherham this is £13.790m for 2013/14 and the service is currently 
forecasting a balanced budget. The grant conditions allow for any underspend at the 
year-end to be carried forward in a Public Health Grant Reserve to fund commitments 
towards public health outcomes. 
 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
 
The overall forecast as at end February 2014 is that the HRA will outturn on budget 
with a contribution to working balance (reserves) of £0.369m instead of drawing from 
reserves; a variation of £2.968m from the original budget. 
 
Currently forecasts show an over-recovery of income from charges for services and 
facilities together with under spends on Housing Repairs, the cost of borrowing and 
supervision and management. 
 

 
Resources Directorate (+£484k forecast overspend) 
 
ICT Services – A forecast overspend of +£850k due to the under-recovery of income 
as a result of lower than budgeted income because of reduced demand by Schools 
(relating to both Rotherham Grid for Learning and general IT provision); £300k and 
reduced spend on IT by Council services (£550k); the latter being partly as a result of 
the moratorium on non-essential spend.  
 
Legal and Democratic Services – A forecast overspend of +£78k due to income and 
postage cost pressures. 

Page 21



 

 
Human Resources & Payroll are forecasting an underspend of -£351k largely in 
respect of staff cost savings and additional income generation. 
 
Management savings are also forecast across the service amounting to -£81k.  
 
Pension cost savings of -£12k are also forecast across the Directorate. 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



 

   

   
 

1.  Meeting: Self Regulation Select Commsision 

2.  Date: 8th May, 2014 

3.  Title: Corporate Risk Register  

4.  Directorate: Environment & Development Services 

 
5. Summary 
 
Attached to this report is the current Corporate Risk Register summary. The 
summary shows the risks associated with the Council’s most significant 
priorities and projects, and actions being taken to mitigate these risks.  
 
The Council’s key current risks continue to relate to the financial pressures 
faced by the Council. There are also significant risks associated with achieving 
economic growth and the impact of the welfare reforms.   
 
Risks associated with Digital Region have been lowered to reflect the decision 
by South Yorkshire councils to close the network and the expectation that 
funding for closure is in place.  
 
 
 
6. Recommendations  
 
The Self Regulation Select Commission is asked to: 
 

• note the Corporate Risk Register summary attached at Appendix A 
 

• note the current assessment of the Council’s top corporate risks 
 

• indicate any further risks or opportunities that it feels should be 
added to the risk register. 

 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 
Agenda Item 9Page 23



 

7 Proposals and Details 
 
7.1 Format 

This report contains the latest position on the Corporate Risk Register. The 
Corporate Risk Register summary is attached at Appendix A. This reflects the 
current risk assessments for each corporate priority or project in the Corporate 
Risk Register. 
 
This covering report highlights the top inherent risks.  
 
There are 3 overall categories of risk (RED, AMBER, GREEN) representing 
varying degrees of exposure. Each category contains a range of risk scores, so 
there are varying degrees of risk within each category. Appendix A shows the 
risk category and score for each priority or project included in the register 
before and after risk mitigation actions. 
 
7.2 Highest inherent risks 

The risk register summary shows risks in descending inherent risk order, to 
emphasize the most significant risks faced by the Authority. The top risks 
requiring close monitoring are: 

• Managing Government budget reductions - unable to maintain key services 
due to budgetary limits.  

Despite very challenging circumstances, the Council has maintained its 
successful track record of containing spending within available budget. This 
performance is to the Council’s credit. However, the Council has to save a 
further £40m+ in 2014/15 and 2015/16, making it even harder to manage 
within available resources. 

The Council is changing the way it works with communities and its citizens 
to meet their needs in response to the significance of the financial 
challenges facing the Council that lie ahead. SLT and Cabinet will continue 
to monitor very closely the overall financial performance and position of the 
Council and put in place a strategy to take proportionate and appropriate 
actions to ensure the Council budget and financial position is sustainable. 

• Welfare Reforms 

Government welfare reforms implemented from April 2013 are beginning to 
have substantial implications for residents affected by benefits reductions 
and there is a knock-on impact on Council services.  

Services are tracking implications and informing Members as appropriate, 
so that appropriate decisions can be made where necessary.   

• Delivering effective Children’s Services within budget  

On-going action is being taken by management to provide services within 
the budget available. Cabinet is being kept informed of the relevant financial 
challenges as part of the budget monitoring and budget setting processes 
and is making decisions accordingly. 

• Economic Growth 

The risk associated with achieving Economic Growth remains Red in 
recognition of the on-going weak economic conditions. 

Page 24



 

 
7.3 Other key developments / changes during the period 

A new risk has been added at the request of the Public Health service relating 
to pandemics and communicable diseases. This not only addresses the major 
risk currently posed to that service but also illustrates the changing face of the 
authority and its responsibilities.  

Two risks have been removed from the register: 

• Making best use of properties and expanding Worksmart; The move to 
Riverside and extended ‘worksmarting’ of other office-based staff along 
with good performance in disposing of surplus properties, mean these 
aims are sufficiently progressed to warrant this risk’s removal from the 
corporate risk register. It will continue to be reviewed as part of the EDS 
top priorities / risk register  

• Financial impact of mesothelioma claims to be paid through Municipal 
Mutual Insurance, as the impact is now more clearly known and has 
been fully provided for. 

The Corporate Priorities column has also been updated to reflect the newly 
defined Corporate Priorities for the period 2013-16. 

 

8.  Finance 

The risks contained in the register require ongoing management action. In 
some cases additional resources may be necessary to implement the relevant 
actions or mitigate risks. Any additional costs associated with the risks should 
be reported to the SLT and Members for consideration on a case by case basis.  
  
 
9.  Risks and Uncertainties 

It is important to review corporate risks on an ongoing basis, to ensure risks 
relating to the Council’s key projects and priorities are effectively monitored and 
managed by the Strategic Leadership Team and Members.  
 
 
10.  Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 

Risk Management is part of good corporate governance and is wholly related to 
the achievement of the objectives in the Council’s Corporate Plan. 
 
 
11.  Background Papers and Consultation 

This report reflects the latest updates provided by the respective ‘lead officers’.  
 
 
Contact Names: 
Colin Earl, Director of Audit and Asset Management, x22033 
Andrew Shaw, Insurance and Risk Manager, x22088 
 
 
Appendices 
Appendix A Corporate Risk Register Summary 

Page 25



 4

APPENDIX A:  SUMMARY CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 

 

No Risk Pre 
Controls 
1- 25 

Lead officer 
 
Key Actions/Updates 

Post 
Controls 
1 - 25 

Links to Corporate 
Priorities 

0027 Managing Government budget 
reductions - unable to maintain 
key services due to budgetary 
limits 

 
 

25 

Martin Kimber 

• High priority, driven through Strategic 
Leadership Team and Cabinet 

• Actions to mitigate budget reductions 
are continually being identified 

• Budget principles have been revised 
which will see a different approach to 
the way services are delivered. 

 

 

20 

All Priorities 

0037 Welfare Reform: 

• Significant pressures arising 
from the localisation of various 
resources and a reduction in 
overall funding available, 
limited administration capacity 
and reduced collection of 
Council Tax.  

• Potential major impact of 
reduced housing benefits, 
leading to higher debts, 
increasing demand for 
shrinking services, and 
increasing poverty and 
vulnerability. Potential to 
increase gap in communities’ 
needs. 

• Negative overall impact on the 
local economy, with spiralling 
consequences. 

• Potential increase in crime. 
 

 
 

25 

Karl Battersby 

• Effective communications especially in 
relation to discretionary benefits 
administered by the Council and 
arrangements for assisting those in 
need to access benefits.  

• Additional HRA resources are being 
deployed to support Council tenants. 

• The significant risk is now associated 
with uncertainty over the introduction 
of Universal Credit by the 
Government. Implementation should 
have commenced in October 2013, 
but there is still no date or any other 
details as the nationwide programme 
has slipped. 

• Contract with LASER credit union has 
been extended until March 2015 and 
Depot for supply of food to local food 
banks is now open offering further 
opportunities. 
 

 
 

16 

All Priorities 

P
a
g
e
 2

6



 5

No Risk Pre 
Controls 
1- 25 

Lead officer 
 
Key Actions/Updates 

Post 
Controls 
1 - 25 

Links to Corporate 
Priorities 

0022 Unable to deliver effective 
Children’s Services within 
budget 
 

 
 
 

25 

Joyce Thacker 

• Continuous monitoring of budget and 
reporting to SLT / Cabinet 

• On-going monitoring and reporting of 
budget position, with improvement 
expected in the budget outturn 
position.  

• Ofsted inspection profile maintained / 
improved. 

• Strategy in place for 14/15 to create 
additional capacity for teenage foster 
placements to reduce reliance on out 
of authority placements. 
 

 
 
 

16 

Priority 2: Protecting our 
most vulnerable people 
and families, enabling 
them to maximise their 
independence 
 

0040 Developing economic growth, 
increase business rates income 
and increase opportunities for 
residents 
 
 

 
 

20 

Karl Battersby 

• Significant and previously successful 
inward investment activity 

• Detailed support programme for local 
businesses 

• High quality start up facilities 

• Maximising location and transport 
advantages. 

 
 

16 

All Priorities 

0033 Funding of the Digital Region 
Project to provide 
comprehensive broadband 
facilities across South Yorkshire 

 
 
 

20 

Martin Kimber 

• A decision has been taken by South 
Yorkshire Councils to close the 
network in an orderly and solvent 
manner, following BIS’s decision (as 
the major shareholder) to withdraw 
future funding for the project.  

• Closure plan progressing. 

• Funding for closure in place; at this 
stage funding is considered sufficient 
to meet expected liabilities.  

 
 
 

12 

Priority 1: Stimulating 
the local economy and 
helping local people into 
work 

P
a
g
e
 2

7



 6

No Risk Pre 
Controls 
1- 25 

Lead officer 
 
Key Actions/Updates 

Post 
Controls 
1 - 25 

Links to Corporate 
Priorities 

0021 Failure to sustain improvement 
in Children’s Services  

 
 
 

20 

Joyce Thacker 

• Attainment at Key Stage 4 in the 5 + 
A* - C, including English and Maths, 
is 3.3% above national average. 5 + 
A* - C in all subjects is 2.1% above 
national average. 

• Key Stage 2 attainment in reading, 
writing and maths combined 
increased 1.6% to 71.6% against 
current national average of 76%. Gap 
reduced by 0.6% during 12/13. 

• Investigation by South Yorkshire 
Police continues into historical Child 
Sexual Exploitation cases.  

• OFSTED is now operating under a 
new inspection framework for 
Children’s Services which is a much 
harder test and now encompasses 
the whole of Safeguarding Children 
and Families activities under a single 
framework. Preparation for inspection 
is underway and being monitored by 
the CYPS Improvement Panel. 

• Appointment successful for 
permanent Director of Safeguarding, 
Children and Families. 

• External reviews undertaken of front 
door, child in need teams and LAC. 

• 71.4% of 451 Ofsted regulated 
services good or better 

• School Improvement Self-
Assessment completed. 
 

 
 
 

12 

Priority 2: Protecting our 
most vulnerable people 
and families, enabling 
them to maximise their 
independence 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

8



 7

No Risk Pre 
Controls 
1- 25 

Lead officer 
 
Key Actions/Updates 

Post 
Controls 
1 - 25 

Links to Corporate 
Priorities 

0041 Improving health and well-being 
 

 
 

20 

Tom Cray 

• Health and Wellbeing strategy in 
place and being delivered through a 
set of six workstreams, monitored by 
a multi-agency steering group.  

• Strong focus on prevention, 
independence and helping people to 
help themselves.  

• Public health fully integrated into the 
council and improvements planned 
through the Public Health Outcomes 
Framework via the Public Health 
Commissioning Plan 

• The Better Care Fund plan has been 
developed to increase integrated 
working across health and social care 
and a first submission for Better Care 
Funding has been made 

 
 

12 

Priority 4: Helping 
people to improve their 
health and wellbeing and 
reducing inequalities 
within the borough 

0044 
 
 
 
 

Family Poverty 

• Tackling poverty is a key 
priority for the Health and 
Wellbeing Board and the 11 
most deprived 
neighbourhoods agenda 

 

 
 

20 

Joyce Thacker 

• ‘Families for Change’ programme 
established and contract let    

• Early help family support programme 
in place 

• Ofsted evidence shows that schools are 
making effective use of the additional 
pupil premium funding designed to help 
disadvantaged families. 

• Level and eligibility for free school 
meals is up from 7,997 in 2012 to 
8,098 in October 2013. Take up was 
74.28% in 11/12 and is now 80% 

• Work is underway for the ‘Free School 
Meals’ offer for all Key Stage 1 pupils. 

 
 

12 

Priority 2: Protecting our 
most vulnerable people 
and families, enabling 
them to maximise their 
independence 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

9



 8

No Risk Pre 
Controls 
1- 25 

Lead officer 
 
Key Actions/Updates 

Post 
Controls 
1 - 25 

Links to Corporate 
Priorities 

0031 Academies, Free Schools and 
other school settings - Potential 
impact on LA schools and the 
Council e.g. loss of revenue, 
falling pupil numbers, reduced 
attainment, breakdown in 
relationships etc 

 
 
 
 

16 

Joyce Thacker 

• By April 2014 there will be 24 schools 
in the Borough converted to Academy 
status. Relationships have been 
maintained and all schools continue to 
sign up to the Rotherham School 
Improvement mission. 

• School Governing Bodies continue to 
meet in whole Learning Community 
meetings, exploring the implications of 
Academy conversion, collaborative / 
partnership working and other models 

• Continue to enhance current strong 
working relationships with converted 
and proposed future Academy Trusts. 

• Academy sponsor for the new Central 
Primary School has been selected by 
a convened panel, approved by 
Cabinet and DfE notified. 

• The first Free school application is in 
to set up an Alternative Provision/ 
Pupil Referral Unit in Rotherham 

• Maximise potential for income 
generation with Academies through 
the provision of quality services via 
competitive SLA agreements. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

12 

Priority 2: Protecting our 
most vulnerable people 
and families, enabling 
them to maximise their 
independence 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

0



 9

 

No Risk Pre 
Controls 
1- 25 

Lead officer 
 
Key Actions/Updates 

Post 
Controls 
1 - 25 

Links to Corporate 
Priorities 

0030 Schools Collaboration- impact of 
schools commissioning on LA 
services 
  

 
 
 
 

16 

Joyce Thacker 

• Monitoring of schools’ appetite for 
change is on-going. Positive 
discussions continue between the 
Rotherham School Improvement 
Partnership and Teaching School 
Alliance 

• Portfolio of services review completed. 
Schools and Academies continue to 
procure many RMBC services at 
present via Service Level Agreements 

• Work continues in relation to the new 
schools funding arrangements 
effective from 2015 onwards. 

• Academies continue to buy back LA 
provided services via SLA maximising 
potential income streams. 

 

 
 
 
 

12 

Priority 2: Protecting our 
most vulnerable people 
and families, enabling 
them to maximise their 
independence 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

1



 10

 

No Risk Pre 
Controls 
1- 25 

Lead officer 
 
Key Actions/Updates 

Post 
Controls 
1 - 25 

Links to Corporate 
Priorities 

0042 Maximising reputation 
opportunities; enhancing 
reputation as a leading 
authority, delivering services to 
others, attracting businesses, 
positive Public recognition.  
 

 
 
 

12 

Martin Kimber 

• Media handling policy and guidelines 
approved and communicated to 
managers, based on risk management 
principles 

• Positive article on Rotherham (March 
2014), headed “Resilience in 
Rotherham” appeared in Municipal 
Journal following interview with Chief 
Executive 

• Budget consultation – strong 
engagement with local communities 
through development of e-consultation 
on 2014/2015 budget proposals 

• Rotherham CSE  team win national 
award – Longest Journey Under 
Challenging Conditions – in recognition 
of continued improvements in service 
delivery 

• Two shortlisted entries in Local 
Government Chronicle Awards – Heart 
Town Partnership and HR / Shared 
Services 

• Digital engagement strategy under 
development – supporting greater 
engagement with communities,  

• Reputational risk presented by 
forthcoming publication of independent 
inquiry into historic CSE cases – 
communications strategy to be 
developed (to include national / 
regional / local and specialist media). 

 
 
 

9 

All priorities 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

2



 11

 

No Risk Pre 
Controls 
1- 25 

Lead officer 
 
Key Actions/Updates 

Post 
Controls 
1 - 25 

Links to Corporate 
Priorities 

0045 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pandemics and communicable 
diseases. 
 
Risk now rests with local 
authority since transfer of Public 
Health Service. 

 
 

8 

John Radford 

• Multi agency plans in place to 
manage risks of communicable 
disease and potential pandemics. 

• Flu and targeted vaccination 
programmes initiated 

• At risk groups identified and 
immunised 

 
 

6 

Priority 4: Helping 
people to improve their 
health and wellbeing and 
reducing inequalities 
within the borough  

 

P
a
g
e
 3

3



 

 

1. 
Meeting: Improving Lives Select Commission 

2. 
Date: 30th April 2014  

3. 
Title: Work Programme 2013/14 – Update and 

Forward Planning 

4. 
Directorate: Resources  

5. Summary 

 
This report provides the Self-Regulation Select Commission with an update on 
progress on the delivery of its work programme, summarising achievements and 
changes that have taken place. It also reports on future agenda items and 
potential themes going forward into 2014/15. 
 

6. Recommendation 

 
That Members: 
 

• Note achievements so far; 

• Consider the approach it would like to adopt for 2014/15 work programme 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 
Agenda Item 10Page 34



 

7. Proposals and Details 

7.1 The work programme for 2013/14 was agreed at the OSMB meeting on the 28th 
June 2014, attached as Appendix A.  This report provides members with an 
update on the progress made to date.  

In summary: 
 

• With the exception of an item of equality impact of budget reductions, all 
items identified in the work programme have been completed or scheduled 
for completion by the end of the municipal year; 

• The scrutiny review on ‘Maximising support to the local economy through 
Council procurement/commissioning practice’ will be reported early in the 
new municipal year 

• A working group met to contribute to the new corporate plans outcomes 
following the refresh of the Corporate Plan. These will be reported from 
September onwards; 

• Self-Regulation was also the principal scrutiny body which examined budget 
setting proposals. Several meetings were designated solely to these matters 
with Cabinet Members and Senior Officers attending meeting to answer 
questions on the proposals. 

7.2 Because of its monitoring role, many of the issues considered by the Commission 
will continue to be scheduled at regular points through the municipal year. These 
include: 

• Revenue and capital budget monitoring 

• Corporate risk register 

• Complaints and compliments 

• Corporate Plan outcomes 

There may be other issues arising from the monitoring of the performance of the 
Corporate Plan that may be scheduled into the work programme. 
 
Other suggested areas of work include:  
 

• Consideration of the 2015/16 budget setting process. 

• Equality impact  of budget savings  

• Workforce planning issues in light of workforce reductions and service 
pressures. It is suggested that an initial report is scheduled that will inform 
members’ decision about the scope of this work. 

Members are asked to consider whether the above items should be scheduled as 
part of the work programme and if there are additional items that they wish to 
prioritise as part of the work programme for 2014/15.  
 

7.3 The other Select Commissions are also looking at their forward planning for 
2014/15.  The Health Select Commission are focusing predominantly on one 
theme for the year – Mental Health and Wellbeing, Improving Places Select 
Commission programme is to be focused around the theme of supporting the local 

Page 35



 

economy and it is likely that Improving Lives Select Commission has safeguarding 
as its central theme.  It has also been suggested that the theme of DWP work and 
other programmes will be the focus for OSMB.  . 

8. Finance 

No direct financial implications. 

9. Risks and Uncertainties 

The development of a clear work programme maximises the potential for Scrutiny 
to have an impact and mitigates against the risk of using resources with little 
impact or outcome.  It does, however, need to maintain flexibility to allow for 
uncertainties to be accommodated within the planning process.   

10.  Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 

The Scrutiny work programme aims to add value to corporate priorities by 
addressing key policy and performance priorities.  These are taken into 
consideration when defining the work programme on an annual basis. 

11. Background Papers and Consultation 

Minutes of Self-Regulation Select Committee (June 2013-March 2014) 
 

 

Contact Name: 
Caroline Webb,  Senior Adviser (Scrutiny and Member Development)  
Email: caroline.webb@rotherham.gov.uk  tel: (01709) 822765 
  
 
 

Page 36



Appendix A: Self-Regualtion Select Commission – work programme 2013/14 
 

Subject Source Work category Status 

Maximising support to the local economy through Council 
procurement/commissioning practice 

Scrutiny Review 
To report early in municipal 
year 

Budget setting process Cabinet/SLT/Scrutiny In-depth overview Completed  

Budget monitoring Scrutiny Progress reports Regular monitoring reports 

Impact of invest to save Scrutiny Progress report Completed 

Impact of budget cuts on equalities Scrutiny Report Not completed – to reschedule 

Update – district heating review (6 months progress) Scrutiny Report  

Council Housing rents  Scrutiny Report Completed 

Performance monitoring/  Scrutiny Progress reports  
Regular monitoring reports 
 

Review of Corporate Plan outcomes 
Scrutiny/Performance and 
Quality 

Working Group 

Completed - Refresh 
completed.  
New process reported from 
Sept 14 

Role of performance clinics SLT Report Completed 

Complaints/Complements Scrutiny Reports Completed 

Digital regions Scrutiny Reports  Completed 

Corporate Risk Register Scrutiny Reports Regular Monitoring Report 

Agency Workers – workforce planning Scrutiny  Report 
Completed 
 

Implications of the Deregulation Bill Scrutiny Report Completed 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

7


	Agenda
	7 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 27th March, 2014 (herewith)
	8 Revenue Budget Monitoring for the period ending 28th February, 2014 (report herewith)
	9 Corporate Risk Register (report herewith)
	10 Work Programme 2013/14 - Update and Forward Planning (report herewith)
	Work Programme Attachment


